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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to voter approval of indirect funding methods for acquisition, improvements, or 
construction by or on behalf of a political subdivision of any property or structure and to 
require a school district to obtain approval of the superintendent of public instruction for 
acquisition, improvements, or construction of any property or structure financed through 
indirect funding methods; and to provide and effective date. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Klemin: Opened hearing on HB 1459 

Representative Boehning: Testimony 1 

Testimon 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 

Chairman Klemin: This would require a vote any time one of these wanted to build a new 
structure. 

Representative B: Correct. We have many new buildings coming up and some went 
against the wishes of the citizens of the county. There was a vote against one 3 times to 
not build and they are building anyways. It is tax payers' dollars and we should not be 
shifting authority and we should not be shifting bonds without approval of the city. 

Representative Hatlestad: Does this mean if an agency built a school, leased it to a school 
district, the super public construction could stop the school construction? 

Representative Boehning: I am not sure if he could stop it but the people need to give 
approval for building authorities. Fargo is redoing bond issues and this has been a big 
debate. 

Chairman Klemin: The section that is being amended was just enacted in the last session 
and to require a school district voter approval of building authorities or other indirect funding 
methods and this is under the chapter of bonds. So I read the bill that you are changing this 
to apply to instead of school districts but to municipalities or governing bodies of 
municipalities. 

Representative Boehning: Correct. 
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Chairman Klemin: Why would we not want to continue with this requirement for school 
districts? 

Representative Beadle: The definition of municipality in this section of code means county, 
city, township, public school district, park district, recreational district, and rural fire district 
and the power to borrow money. School districts covered within the definition of 
municipality within this section of code. With constructing any building, would that apply to 
adding a lift station to service new neighbor hoods or if a park district wanted to put in a 
new gazebo? 

Representative Boehning: They could do special assessments for those, which would apply 
to this, so it is more the bonding issues for new buildings and so forth we removed the 
improvements out of the language so that would clarify. With those it would be I their 
budget. 

Representative Koppelman: This bill needs some clean up. It seems to me that section of 
law, the term that they are using for municipality, is generally what a political subdivision 
would define. It is confusing because when we think of a municipality it is a city 
government. 

Representative Beadle: It also means any of the things I included that is able to borrow 
money and issue written obligations to repay out of the fund of public revenue. I think that 
might be a limiting factor based off the fact that it is empowered to borrow money. I don't 
know if we have any political subdivisions that can't borrow money? 

Chairman Klemin: That is how a municipality is defined here. 

Representative Vigasa: I am providing neutral testimony. (Testimony 2) These votes are 
relating to the building of the new court house in the Griggs's County. You see a conflict. 
They went ahead without the approval. They didn't have enough money so who is now 
responsible to get the rest? 

Representative Maragos: Could a county vote in a restriction like that on its own? 

Representative Vigasa: I am not sure. 

Representative Kretschmar: These all required a 60% correct? 

Representative Vigasa: Yes they did and they were a ways from reaching that threshold. 

Representative Hatlestad: Does this bill require every structure to have vote for building 
authority or once you vote the building authority in it stays? 

Representative Vigasa: Once a building authority is approved I would think they could 
move ahead with what they please. 

Troy Olson: Testimony 3 

Chairman Klemin: Are you a county commissioner? 
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Troy Olson: Yes 

Chairman Klemin: You are just speaking as a citizen not as a commissioner? 

Troy Olson: Yes. I didn't tell them I would be coming to testify on behalf of myself. 

Representative Maragos: The lease an agreement with the building authority, what 
happened? Is there a monitory exchange there, and what happens to that money? 

Troy Olson: This lease agreement is set up as a general obligation of the county and the 
lease payments actually are made right to the bank of North Dakota to repay the bonds. 

Representative Maragos: Why were the commissioners so adamant about building a new 
court house? Was there something wrong with the old county court house that needed to 
be addressed, because some old buildings have to be updated, it is costly and then they 
become maintenance extensive? Why was it such an attractable argument? 

Troy Olson: The way I see it, yes that building needed upgrading. I think what was at issue 
was the size of the project and the first two votes were to upgrade/update and build on to 
the existing court house and then the last one was to build a whole new court house. I think 
the problem as to why the bond issues fail would be that they were presenting options to 
the voters that the voters didn't like and I think the right thing to have done would be to 
have brought another option forward, which they chose not to do. 

Representative Maragos: In my county we had the same problem. We needed more space, 
we had the bond, and the voters voted it down. We have the problem now of not enough 
jails space too. The voters finally approved the project and they ended up getting a 1 /3 of 
the quality of the building for the same cost as the first time it would have been. 

Troy Olson: I understand that it is a risk but it is still the tax payer's money. 

Representative Strinden: The bill doesn't address what happens after the project is done. 
There is no provision for the building authority to dissolve. Could that be a problem? 

Troy Olson: It could be in the future, but doesn't each new building authority need a vote? 

Representative Hatlestad: Is your county making payments on the unfinished court house? 

Troy Olson: Yes 

Representative Hatlestad: If the building authority that exists borrowed more money to 
finish the court house then you still have the obligation to rent or lease it? That is not an 
option for you. 

Troy Olson: The lease will be in place until 2033. I don't know if there is a way for the 
county not to continue paying that? In some people's eyes the building authority breached 
their contract when they didn't finish the building. We can't inhabit it. This project gets a little 
convoluted because part of the building is owned by the county and part is not. The 
emergency operation center was built with the help of a grant from the North Dakota DES. 
That grant is a 25% match by the county. So the county has to pay the 25% of the grant. 
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When we have caught up with the contractor and the building authority still has a 274,000 
balance with the contractor, they are not willing to comeback and finish the EOC center or 
the court house until that is paid. The building authority only has 193,000 left in the bond 
fund. It looks to me like the county is going to have to step this up and finish it but it's hard 
for me to understand that when the county doesn't own the building. If more debt were 
incurred to do that, the county would have to pay that back over the next 20 years anyway. 
In a fashion I guess it doesn't matter. 

Representative Kelsh: Wasn't there an issue with the old court house? 

Troy Olson: There was an issue with moisture and they recommended some work be done 
on the courthouse so it would be more well drained. Those things have not been done. The 
new court house is 30 feet from the old one and we don't know what we will do with the old 
one because we don't' have the funding to do much with it. It is also on the national historic 
register and retaining and maintaining the courthouse at this juncture is a covenant of the 
DOC grant. There are more hoops to jump through to get permission to get permission to 
do something with the court house. When and if we get to that point. 

Representative Maragos: I am unclear on the relationship with the building authority and 
the county. Who owns the building authority? 

Troy Olson: The previous county commissioners formed a non-profit corporation. 

Representative Maragos: Who chooses the members of the building authority? 

Troy Olson: They do. Some of the new county commissioners have asked to sit on that. 
Particularly when one of the old commissioners resigned so there were only four of them 
and they did not allow that, just so we could stay in the loop. 

Representative Maragos: There is no mechanism to control what they are doing? 

Troy Olson: We have no recourse. On March 3rd the general contractor and the building 
authority is supposed to meet. 

Chairman Klemin: There must be some statutory provisions relating to the formation and 
operation of the building authorities. Are you aware of any statutory provisions relating to 
creation and operation of building authorities? 

Troy Olson: This was formed in the incorrect fashion. It was under direction of the previous 
state attorney at the time. 

Opposition: 

Kent Costin: Testimony 4 

Chairman: You seemed a little critical about what the state of North Dakota is doing with 
these building authority issues but this bill doesn't apply to the state only to municipalities 
as defined in this chapter. 
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Kent Costin: Yes. The purpose of this is to point out the equity in the use of tools. I am not 
being critical that the state is using it. I think it is being actively used because it is a good 
tool. I am just comparing and contrasting the right you are leaving for the state as opposed 
to the restrictive nature of what is being imposed upon schools and municipalities. 

Representative Maragos: Can you tell me about the structure and governance of your 
building authority? 

Kent Costin: It was as a result as the project I testified about. We had our existing city hall, 
we were running out of space, and we needed more room. Existing in the century code is a 
chapter that allowed the procedure to happen. You designate and form a non-profit 
corporation in the state of North Dakota; you designate people to serve on the building 
authority. (In Fargo they did name themselves) It is an independent entity that operates 
separately and they are the authority that borrows the funds under the provisions of the 
North Dakota century code. 

Representative Maragos: If a commissioner changes it changes the building authority for 
the city? 

Kent Costin: Yes. 

Representative Koppelman: Do you see anything lacking in state law currently regarding 
the accountability of building authorities? 

Kent Costin: The issue with regard to the ability is what was sighted earlier. It is the size 
and the nature of that transaction. If you're talking about Fargo doing a 5 million dollar 
renovation of city hall, we don't believe that there is any reason to reach out to the citizens 
and say would you please give us 60% voter approval to do this project it is needed and we 
have the money, but we are going to borrow the money to do it. In the case of a smaller 
community where there may be limited capacity to pay those bonds, I think it is a huge 
issue. That's where all the noise you hear about is. It is when someone rises and says this 
needs to be done; we are pushing the envelope here with regard to fiscal prudency I can 
see that simply handing it off to an authority doesn't close up the hole. 

Representative Kretschmar: Your building authority is under the city commissioner and they 
can do what they want with it? 

Kent Costin: Yes. They can even appoint whoever they choose to be on the building 
authority. 

Representative Kelsh: When you did the city hall, you went with a building authority, they 
borrowed the money, they built it, and normally there is a lease back (they build it and lease 
it back to the city) . Is that what happened there? Because the city doesn't really own that do 
they? 

Kent Costin: You are exactly right. The building authority owns the building that was 
financed with the proceeds for the money they borrowed. The city, or the municipality, is 
the entity that must appropriate the funds in their annual budgets to pay that lease of the 
use of that facility until those bonds are dissolved or paid off. So in 20 years the whole 
structure just ends and I would assume that the asset would get transferred over back to 
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the city because there is no more debt or maybe there is nothing to be said that the building 
authority couldn't continue to hold title. 

Chairman Klemin: The way the bill is proposed to be amended it takes out the work 
improvements. That changes the existing law too and your city hall project was a 
remodeling and expansion project, you wouldn't consider that that to be a new project? 
That was an improvement of an existing facility? 

Kent Costin: Yes, we would not need approval then. With regard to acquisition that 
happens sometimes too. In Fargo we bought an old CVS building down on 131h avenue. We 
bought that property because it was run down, vacant, and we wanted to use it for 
municipal purpose. So we acquired that property which under this bill would require more 
approval and then we improve and are in the process of improving it right now to the tune 
of about 9 million dollars so all in we are going to have 12 million dollar investment in this 
facility but this bill cuts it in half. The question we would ask the voters perhaps is can we 
borrow money to buy the place and then if the improvements aren't said of that authority 
then we could move to fix it up to whatever standard we want. 

Representative Hatlestad: Did the building authority borrow the money to buy this building 
then and renovate it and they will lease it back to the county? 

Kent Costin: We actually paid cash for the building out of our cash reserves. It was a 
budgeted item within the general fund. 

Chairman: This would not apply to that situation at all? 

Kent Costin: No. The point I want to make is each circumstance will be unique depending 
on what your community needs are. You may have to acquire a building, renovate an 
existing one, or you may have to build a new one. We would ask that, that would be 
evaluated. 

Representative Koppelman: Why are building authorities necessary? 

Kent Costing: They became populate in the 80's and they were a way to circumvent voter 
approval. In the case of a state you have a limitation on debt and so do cities. There is a 
limitation on debt but the needs continue. The question is how we make this happen and 
provide a funding source. 

Blake Crosby: Testimony 5 

Representative Zubke: Did they issue tax exempt bonds to finance that courthouse? 

Blake Crosby: I was only curious about what happened and was doing some work there but 
I can't answer that question. 

Representative Zubke: It looks as they typically issue a tax exempt bond and the bond 
holders are the ones that get left because that political subdivision does not have to 
continue to lease that courthouse or make those lease payments. The bond holders 
subsequently become responsible and they have no recourse against that political 
subdivision. 
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Representative Strinden: If the elected officials of a political subdivision appoint someone to 
be on a building authority they don't have the power to remove them and appoint someone 
les in their place? 

Blake Crosby: If they have the power to appoint they have the power to remove. 

Representative Strinden: Now there is a new elected county commission. Could the 
reappoint the building authority? 

Blake Crosby: My guess is if they could they already would have. 

Dana Jahner: Testimony 6 

Barb Erbstoesser: Testimony 7 

Representative Kelsh: The 45,000 square foot community recreational center, the money 
for the term of the bond is there on a yearly basis. So you won't raise the property taxes of 
the people. 

Dana: If we will bond this for so many years and we set up an amortization schedule and 
we look at land dedications and user fees we generate from the building and we 
predetermine how we will pay for that and it is right along the planning process of the whole 
building. 

Representative Beadle: Do the user fees associated with the facilities cover the operational 
expenses associated with the facilities? I understand the process of the building authority 
itself doesn't directly increase property taxes but if you increase the amount of buildings 
and square footages and space that you are having to staff and maintain and handle, how 
does that impact the operational budget as a whole the park district and then could that 
indirectly lead to property tax revenues? 

Barb: We have seen substantial growth in our programs and activities and it seems that we 
have opened the doors and people flood in. We offer programs from people 18 months old. 
The revenue from the programs off set the operational and maintenance fees for the most 
part and those are things we also take into consideration as well. We know if we are adding 
these facilities we will have greater demand for more employees and it is a balancing act. 

Representative Zubke: You say the mill don't raise property taxes but who assess the 
recreational mills and isn't that onto those property holders? 

Barb: Back in the late 80's we levied for 16 mills for a general fund and we have five other 
mills for recreation. Those recreation mills are designated for projects and things like that 
but they also cover small improvements that we are not necessarily bonding for or using 
the building authority on. 

Representative Koppelman: You talked about the many ways the building authority 
financed the projects. I f  the bill were passed you said there would be no other way to fund 
the project other than general obligation election. Is there something in the bill that would 
not allow some of these other things like user fees, donations, and so on? 
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Barb: Expanding on the project we wouldn't be able to look so far ahead like we have or do 
some of the larger projects. We are diligent about that. Not everything fits into the building 
authority. 

Chairman Klemin: Doesn't the bill allow you to do these projects with voter approval? 

Barb: Yes but it would put on delay. Time is of the essence. 

Representative Anderson: If you go to the voters to ask for the project do the voters 
anticipate that you are using their property taxes and you aren't? 

Barb: That could be a concern.  

John Martinsen: The problem everyone talks about is very unique. School boards are 
already supposed to get voter approval. I have a concern about the language on page 2 
line 4. This is a bill that should be killed. 

Representative Hatlestad: I f  you created a building authority to build a school and DPI says 
no, you can't do it? 

John Martinsen: Correct 

Representative Koppelman: It seems to me that there is a long list of the agreements there 
are talking about on the language you are concerned about it. 

John Martinsen: I would agree. 

Chairman Klemin: We will hold this bill until next week and am closing the hearing on HB 
1459 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to voter approval of indirect funding methods for acquisition, improvements, or 
construction by or on behalf of a political subdivision of any property or structure and to 
require a school district to obtain approval of the superintendent of public instruction for 
acquisition, improvements, or construction of any property or structure financed through 
indirect funding methods; and to provide and effective date. 

Minutes: Testimony 1 and 2 

Chairman Klemin: Opened discussion on HB 1459. I have asked John to explain building 
authorities. 

John Walstad: (Testimony 1) It is something you don't hear about a lot but it is used often in 
our state. It is an alternative financing method. Building authorities are a recent 
development. There was a revenue ruling that said bonds issued by a building authority are 
exempt from federal income tax. Without that building authorities would be pointless. It 
makes the bonds attractive to investors in the same manner as the traditional bond issued 
by whomever. I don't think there is an appreciable difference in the rate of interest. Building 
authority bonds would be a higher rate of interest because there is more risk to the 
investors because a levy to pay the bond is levied for 20 or 30 years into the future. The 
levies are all made instantly and irrepealably. A building authority doesn't have that 
guarantee. The traditional method is the building authority issues the bonds, builds a 
structure, leases it back to the entity, and that is not necessarily guaranteed for 30 years. It 
is a year by year renewal of the lease agreement. You don't save any money with the 
building authority. Not to put down building authorities but the only feature of building 
authorities that makes them attractive is no election. Voters aren't involved in the process. 
The building authority has to be formed as a non-profit corporation. The entity cannot form 
it. There is an attorney general opinion that is referenced here that the subdivision can't 
form the building authority directly, but in reality what happens is the members of the 
governing body end up being the board of directors of the building authority: it is the same 
people but not them as a governing body it is them as individuals. In the memo there is a 
listing which was made a few years back. It has probably grown but I put it there because 
as legislators I thought you might want to know if you have on in your back yard. It appears 
primarily that it is school districts that become involved but it could be anyone. We have 
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had legislation on this topic in recent sessions, and after 3 attempts to put restrictions in 
place legislation was enacted after last session that does require voter approval of a 
building authority arrangement in some circumstances. 

Chairman Klemin: This statute that is being amended in the bill was enacted in 2013. Is 
there another one besides this? 

John Walstad: No that is the only one relating to building authorities now. You have 
probable heard about the Grigg's county issues and that situation is not a building authority. 
They had to set one up but we have a statutory provision that is specific (57.15.59) and 
was used in Grigg's County. That one is limited to a build lease arrangement for a court 
facility, jail, and law enforcement. It would was put there mainly for court facilities. It has 
been there for many years and it was not on my radar until the Grigg's county situation 
came up. It is one that rarely comes up but in the Grigg's county situation that is what was 
used. 

Chairman Klemin: Is there a separate statutory authority for the creation of these building 
authorities that can issues these bonds? 

John Walstad: No. It is just a non-profit corporation, so there is authority to set up non-profit 
corporations and they can do so and specify that their purpose is to issue bonds and build 
a building and lease it to a political subdivision. All of that is allowed under corporate 
formation laws. 

Chairman Klemin: In the constitution and in the statute on bonding there are limitations on 
the amount of bonds that can be issued based on the tax evaluation of cities or counties. 
These building authorities are not subject to those limitations? 

John Walstad: No they are not. It is not considered death of the political subdivision and the 
reason being as I mentioned that lease arrangement can be canceled at any time. It is an 
annual expenditure from available revenue 

Chairman Klemin: Have there been any previous studies? 

John Walstad: There has not been a study specifically on use of building authorities. As 
you see this memo was prepared for the interim tax committee but it wasn't a specific study 
on that. It was a topic that arose and I prepared some information and that was about it. 

Representative Maragos: Is the state of ND a political subdivision under that description? 

John Walstad: No the state is not a political subdivision, but the state could probably do 
something like this under that authority and those bonds would be. 

Chairman Klemin: There is a separate chapter in the statute on the state building authority 
called the ND building authority. 

John Walstad: True enough. 

Representative Zubke: You said Grigg's County could cancel the lease agreement so the 
remedy there is they cancel the lease and they are no longer obligated to use that court 
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house then, right? Those bond holders are the ones that end up with the responsibility for 
that. 

John Walstad: That is when the lawyers show up to sort it out. I am not sure what the 
resolution would be. 

Representative Kelsh: You brought up the 60% for bond votes. Why did it end up there? 

John Walstad: I am not sure. I think it has something to do with farming. That in a lot of 
taxing districts the majority of the tax base is farm land but the majority of the voters are 
non-farmers. There are different vote percentages required for different kinds of bond 
issues. 

Representative Anderson: You think this is a good idea? 

John Walstad: I don't know how to answer that. There have been bills considered and 
every time committees don't know how to deal with it. I think you see the issue here. There 
may not be a lot of data to be gathered but the question is is this a good thing to be used or 
do we want to force everyone into the voter both to decide. 

Representative Anderson: One of the arguments to keep it came from a West Fargo Park 
District person that they are going to build a big sports recreational building and the user 
fees will take care of it. The perception id if you take that to the voters they will pay for it 
and they really aren't. That seemed to me a good use of a building authority, but should we 
build schools with a building authority? I don't think so. 

John Walstad: The question started coming across my radar when a school district in Fargo 
started building new schools and people couldn't remember voting on it. 

Representative Koppelman: In the event that there would be an issue where the entity 
would say to a building authority 'we changed our mine, we cancel our lease'. Then the 
bond holders are on the hook but what about the citizens? Is there any obligation of the city 
or is the security of that bond strictly the property or real-estate that has been built? 

John Walstad: I am not sure. It is not the same as a bond issue where mayor or president 
of the governing body has signed the papers saying we are in and the law says that levy is 
permanent every year until paid and it is irrevocable and the constitution says so as well. 
That is a good lock which doesn't exist in this situation. I haven't looked around the country 
to see if entities have backed out often but I would guess there are some court cases on it. 

Representative Zubke: I am in favor of the study. I would not agree with doing anything that 
would disrupt the building authority process because it looks to me that it serves the entities 
very well most of the time. 

Chairman Klemin: We have some options here and there is a proposed amendment to turn 
it into a study (testimony 2). 

Representative Zubke: I motion to adopt the Klemin amendments 

Representative Kelsh: Second 
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A Voice Vote Was Taken: Motion carries 

Representative Hatlestad: Move a do pass as amended 

Representative Koppelman: Second 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: Yes 13, No 0, Absent 1 

Motion carries 

Chairman Klemin: This will be placed on the consent calendar also and be part of the 
motions. 

Representative Klemin will carry the bill 
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PROPOSE D AMEN DMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO . 1459 

Pa ge 1, l ine 1, after "A BILL" replace t he remainder of t he bill wit h  "for an Act to provide f or a 
le gislative mana gement study of use of a buildin g aut hority or ot her met hods to finance 
public buildin g pro jects as an alternative to political subdivision bondin g. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - BUILDING AUTHORITIES 
AND OTHER FINANCING METHODS. Durin g t he 2015-16 interim , t he le gislative 
mana gement s hall consider studyin g use of a buildin g aut hority or ot her met hods to 
finance public buildin g pro jects as an alternative to political subdivision bondin g. T he 
le gislative mana gement s hall report its findin gs and recommendations , to get her wit h  
any le gislation necessary to implement t he recommendations , to t he si xty -fift h 
le gislative assembly ." 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1459: Political Subdivisions Committee (Rep. Klemin, Chairman) reco mmends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so a mended , reco mmends DO PASS 
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A Bill for an Act to provide for a Legislative Management study of use of a building authority 
or other methods to finance public building projects as an alternative to political subdivision 
bonding 

Minutes: 

Chairman Burckhard opened the hearing on HB 1459. Senator Judy Lee was not in 
attendance. 

Rep. Randy Boehning sponsor of this bill. We brought the bill forward basically because 
we have a lot of building authorities out there and basically there is no, governance over 
them. We would really like to a state, as to how we can govern these because once 
somebody gets appointed to a building authority you can't get them off of there. There not 
elected by the people, they are spending money that another governing body is 
appropriating and the then the other governing body, who appropriates the money doesn't 
have authority over the building authority. I f  this got turned into a study in the House which I 
have no problem with and I think we really need to take a look at building authorities and 
how they are set up in the state. Most of the building authorities are the same people that 
are on the city councils, or city commissions or park boards. We really need to take a look 
at these building authorities and study them and hopefully address some issues in the 
future. 

Senator Anderson Maybe I am reading this wrong, but mostly of what I see here is the 
changing of a school board to a municipality and governing body. 

Chairman Burckhard I think we need to get the updated one in front of us. Rep. 
Boehning it should be the 2000 version, it should be .02000. 

Senator Anderson Now that answers all of my questions. 
Senator Bekkedahl In Williston I don't know that we have any building authorities or ever 
have had any building authorities so it is pretty foreign to me. I kind of know what's been 
happening and you explained it pretty well in the beginning but, do you see that it's either 
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happening more often and it should be looked at now, or do you see it as more an issue of 
abuse is occurring that it needs to be studied for? 

Rep. Boehning I don't know if we're seeing a lot more abuses, I think it being used a lot. I 
know in the valley they get used a lot especially in the eastern part of the state. I don't know 
in Bismarck if they use them a lot here, but even though my home town Hankinson, of 
about 1000 people, and they are using building authorities to do some stuff with the school 
district. Why they do it. I think there is financing differences with them. The authorities give 
them the power to tax and that is one of the concerns I have with building authorities as 
they'll have the power of the purse. These people are put on the boards without a vote of 
the people. Basically it is a an appointed position and sometimes they may be on the city 
commission and most of them would probably be on the building authority but then when 
you change city commissioners, these guys would probably still be on the building 
authority. In my opinion, there is no accountability on them. 

Senator Bekkedahl Would airport authorities actually have legislative authority as building 
authorities as well then, so are airports involved in this as well? 

Rep. Boehning There are so many and I don't know if that would be in the old language 
because this board the governing body when you look at the old law, the airport authorities 
are probably be a municipal. It would probably fall in that, but that might be governed by a 
different part of this statute I am not sure. 

Senator Anderson I thought I saw that there was a bill that came through from the House 
side, that said, that any non-elected body that was offering to levy taxes would have to 
have approval of the elected body that appointed them. 

Rep. Boehning That could have been one of my bills. I think we killed it in the House. It 
was a 93 page bill and I think we need to have accountability. That is why this got turned 
into a study. There is a lot of issues out there so we need to take a look at this. 

Senator Grabinger I am just wondering. This has been kind of a hot topic for a lot of years. 
Has this been studied before or is this the first time this has been asked for, do you know? 

Rep. Boehning I am not sure. I don't know if it ever has been studied. I don't think I've 
studied it since I've been out here for the last 6 sessions. I really don't think it has been 
addressed. 

Rep. Don Vigessa I am i n  favor of HB 1459 and I would certainly urge the committee to 
give it a do pass recommendation. As the bill was introduced as Rep. Boehning indicated it 
was going to ask that when a building authority would be formed that it would be by the 
vote of the people. I just want to weigh in on this particular bill because of a situation that 
we've had in Griggs County concerning a building authority. When chatting with Rep. 
Klemin and they were researching the bill that was originally introduced they found that 
there was very little in our code concerning building authorities. So they were kind of 
investigating the bill and seeing how they could work with it and they found so little in code, 
concerning this funding authority that they thought we better study this and that is why I 
would agree that it should be looked it. (Explanation in Griggs County 8:57-13:58) I would 
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support giving this a do pass and in our particular case and you will find throughout the 
state that there have been citizens disappointed that building authorities have been formed 
when the voters said no to a project. (+t I) 
Chairman Burckhard So, out of curiosity, what was the price of the new courthouse? Do 
you have any idea? 

Rep. Vigessa That is getting to be so long ago, I can't remember what the total project 
was. The total project was going to come from a federal grant for emergency operation 
center; that was $1 Million dollars approximately. That was a little bit of the impetus of why 
the previous commissioners wanted to move forward because they had a time frame in 
which they would like to use that grant as part of the funding. The voters kept saying no, 
but they moved forward anyway. 

Senator Bekkedahl I appreciate that explanation because what I've seen in the press was 
limited and you gave a great concise explanation of that and it looks to me that you're the 
poster child for this study. But my question is and just so I understand it better, you talked 
about the previous commission and it relates a little bit to this, but you talked about the 
previous commission setting up the building authority after 3 failed bonding vote attempts. 
Were those bonding vote attempts for renovation of the older court house or were they for 
building a new courthouse? 

Rep. Vigessa The first two were renovations of the previous courthouse. The 3rd vote and I 
can't recall whether or not that was moving forward with the new one. I believe it was, but 
the 3rd vote was to build a new courthouse in conjunction with using the million dollars from 
the federal funding to do the emergency operations center in conjunction with a new 
courthouse. I believe the 3rd vote was for a new facility. 

Senator Bekkedahl The reason I asked that question is because to some degree having 
been a local official for all these years, I can understand the frustration of the local elected 
board when you attempt to move forward with something that is necessary because of 
health issues with your employees that keeps getting turned down so to some degree I can 
kind of see what they did. Maybe it partially driven by desperation at the time and this was 
the mechanism that they could use to actually make it happen. I am not condoning what 
they did, but I really can have a better understanding of that now that you've explained it. 

Rep. Vigessa That is exactly correct. There were not only under the pressure to do 
something for the people that work in the courthouse, but also the fact of not being able to 
access the million dollars that is a pretty significant part of the project and when you have 
that kind of money that is available to build a state of the art emergency operations center 
in conjunction with your courthouse its very appealing. I imagine they just didn't want to lose 
that opportunity but at the same time, they did not listen to the citizens that had turned them 
down three times and they saw that the building authority then on the advice of probably 
their state's attorney said you know you've got an option here if you want to move forward 
you can use a building authority and that is what they did. 

Chairman Burckhard It was kind of a tough crowd when they throw out all five at the same 
time. 
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Rep. Vigessa Mr. Chairman I do have the totals here the votes and the dates. Would you 
like to have that entered into the record? It doesn't have any heading on it, or whatever, but 
you can see the percentages, the amount of votes, the amount of project etc. 

Chairman Burckhard Maybe write the bill number on the paper so we know which bill it 
goes with. 

Senator Dotzenrod What is going to happen to the old building? It costs money to tear it 
down. 

Rep. Vigessa I really can't answer it because that is still an issue. It is on the National 
Historical Register, and I understand that those buildings can be destroyed. I think that is an 
option that can be done. That's going to be another battle because we have a large 
segment of our population that would like to see it restored to the point where it can be kept 
as a monument to our county because it is a fantastic building, but the cost as you can well 
imagine to demolish that size of a building is going to be very significant and needs to be 
paid for by the taxpayers. 

Senator Grabinger the cost to refurbish one of them like in Stutsmen County with our 1887 
is extreme too. 

Blake Crosby, Executive Director of the North Dakota League of Cities. Written testimony# 
2. (19:28-25:06) There was a memo prepared for the taxation committee in Oct. 2011 there 
are 28 building authorities registered with the Secretary of State as of Oct. 2011. Many of 
those are school districts and as I am sure you're all aware school districts cannot construct 
a new building without consent of the head of the Department of Public Construction. Does 
the Griggs County situation warrant a study given the fact that were dealing with a IRS 
ruling and that if it is an anomaly as far as building authorities go, we've not had this 
problem before and it was kind of serendipitous that it would happen unfortunately in 
Griggs County, I am not so convinced that it would rise to the level to needing a study. We 
can't correct the Griggs County situation, that train has left the station. When you are in a 
smaller county, and I am from Rolette County, you have a limited pool of persons to run as 
county commissioners or to run for any office. So it's not going to be uncommon for county 
commissioner who are in good stead with all their taxpayers if they want to form a building 
authority, the citizens are going to say well, you guys are already elected county officials just 
go ahead and become a building authority. I don't think we are going to change any of those 
dynamics. I am not sure a study is going to indicate that we would be able to change those 
dynamics. 

Chairman Burckhard I know there are some famous building authorities in Fargo from what 
I understand too isn't there? Didn't they build a high school that way? Didn't Fargo Davies 
build with the building authority? 

Blake Crosby I believe there was but there were some corrections made to that. 

Senator Anderson Just the other day I asked the city auditor of the City of Turtle Lake who 
has established the housing authority with the idea that they could build some housing. 
We've been discussing a piece of land that was available and I said why doesn't the city buy 
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that? His comment was that was up to the Housing Authority now, and my sense was that 
now the Housing Authority has been established they have the authority to purchase the 
land, sell the bonds, build the building and the city felt like they were out of it. Is that true? 

Blake Crosby I am not familiar with that Housing Authority situation and I apologize for that. 
I've dealt with a building authority side of it for the most part. I don't know the answer to that. 

Senator Bekkedahl I could give a little answer to that. The control still exists with the City 
Commission and that they appoint the Housing Authority members. That is the only time that 
I can see. 

Senator Anderson Wouldn't they also appoint the Griggs County building authority? 

Senator Bekkedahl They did that's what I believe that was what Rep. Vigessa said that they 
appointed themselves as a building authority, the commission that was ousted correct? 

Blake Crosby Keep in mind that they appointed themselves to form a non-profit corporation 
that provided them that federal corporation protection. 

Senator Bekkedahl I think what Rep. Vigessa was getting to on the building study was you 
have a situation where a commission appointed themselves as a building authority, gave 
themselves that authority, by that process, they were taken out of office, a new commission 
comes in, once the building authority already existed with the powers under the past 
commission, I don't think the new commission had any mechanism to remove them because 
they were never appointed by that commission. 

Blake Crosby keeping in mind that they were formed under the Federal 501 so they were a 
federal 501c, 4C6 whatever they were. So they were formed under a different umbrella. They 
were sheltered from being removed because they would have to just dissolve the 
corporation. 

Chairman Burckhard closed the hearing on HB 1459. 

Senator Bekkedahl I would be prepared to move on this but I would like to get any 
comments or insights from Senator Lee on this having a situation where she is someone who 
may have used these at some point. I would like to hear here perspective. 
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Chairman Burckhard opened the committee for a discussion on HB 1459. 

Senator Bekkedahl Shouldn't this be a discussion that this should be looked at even 
though the League of Cities opposed it or am I thinking of the airport authority Senator 
Dotzenrod. 

Senator Dotzenrod I really think it was the Airport Authority that we talked about that in tax 
quite a bit. 

Senator Grabinger This one is like Federal law oversees. 

Senator Dotzenrod I know the League of Cities had some misgivings but it said a building 
authority evidently enabled by federal law. But don't we have in our state laws some rights 
to have laws on our state that say to place some limitations on them or to ask them to put 
some measures in front of the people for a vote or some other ways to say that if they have 
a project that. . .  maybe I am wrong. Senator Bekkedahl really knows what's, goes on in city 
government and I don't on this one. 

Senator Bekkedahl I remember now that what I was looking for in the committee 
discussion this morning was input from Senator Lee and she wasn't here for that 
discussion. Again, this is not a foreign concept to me as I've read a lot of literature about it, 
but we just have never used these out west the way they've been used in the valley. 
Anybody that can give more information about that I would appreciate for my informed 
decision. 

Chairman Burckhard I wonder if Home Rule cities come into play here? 
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Senator Dotzenrod Senator Lee in West Fargo there, would probably be able to contribute 
a lot of discussion if she were here. I don't know if we can put this off for a while. Building 
authorities I think in the Fargo, West Fargo system have really gotten some attention. She 
would probably be able to enlighten us on it. 

C hairman Burckhard I think Fargo Davies was built with a building authority. 
The committee stopped the discussion on HB 1459. 



2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Political Subdivisions Committee 
Red River Room, State Capitol 

HB 1459 
3/27/2015 

Job Number 25540 

D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature yY] 
Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A Bill for an Act to provide for a Legislative Management study of use of a building authority 
or other methods to finance public building projects as an alternative to political subdivision 
bonding 

Minutes : ritten testimony # 1 Mark Lerner email to Sen. Judy 

Chairman Burckhard opened the committee for discussion on HB 1459. All senators were 
present. 

Senator Judy Lee came up with a handout that all the committee should have in front of 
them from Mr. Mark Lerner. ( #-/) 
Senator Judy Lee The deal is I believe that there is a whole lot of sponsors on the original 
one. It is quite possible the 3rd sponsor had more to do with this than the first sponsor. 
Anyway, there are several places that use building authorities and I asked both Fargo and 
West Fargo for information and I just got the one from West Fargo first. But it's the same 
deal all around. What happens is that the voters approve the establishment of a building 
authority. Then that building authority as Mr. Lerner explains that in most of the districts the 
school board serves the Board of Directors but not always. You can see different kinds of 
building authorities that he talks about. He tells about the West Fargo one, but the bottom 
line is a building authority has the authority to build as long as it fits into the budget within 
their local financing ability. We limited them in 2013, because to anything over $4 Million 
there has to be a vote. Hardly anything can be done for $4 Million anymore as we know on 
a building project. Both Fargo and West Fargo, voters have been very supportive of school 
construction. So, that is really not been a terrible issue but it simplifies the process as far as 
the time involved and sometimes that is critical when you got several other students 
waltzing in the door. So anyway in an earlier conversation with Mr. Lerner he said on one 
hand I don't know what to say for a recommendation. Because I said what do you think? He 
said on one hand if a study brought about a really good evaluation of a program so that 
maybe some of the things the flexibility that was available before might be restored; or at 
least considered for restoration, I would support it he said. My concern is if you open it up 
it's only going to get worse. There are a couple of reps that hate building authority and they 
are ticked off at Fargo the school board. I've never heard it in West Fargo ever, but there 
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are a few loud voices in Fargo who are very opposed to the building authority and they 
have continued to side to nibble it away. There has been plenty public discourse at school 
board meetings that they have some kind of big crowds when their talking about building 
projects and all. Where is it going to go, there is more fighting actually about boundary 
switch they just pulled. So, anyway the bottom line for those two districts and that's all I can 
talk to you about. The building authority has worked well if they are able to do it within their 
own general funds-their local ability to raise money- and it fits into their budget and it's a 
project that has moved forward. I guess because it works we'll have to talk about what we 
want to do. School districts are not the only ones who might be able to use this but that is 
where it is used in my home area. 

Chairman Burckhard So, in the Fargo Davies situation, they have a 15 mills per building 
authority is that true and they didn't need to go to the voters. 

Senator Judy Lee The building authority was voted on by the voters in the first place, the 
board didn't make it up. The voters approved establishing a building authority with that kind 
of capability. So as long as they are within that capability they are able to move forward. 
But, it's a situation in which I don' think anybody want under the table quiet secret things 
going on, obviously, that is not it, but as you well know our those buildings are extremely 
public and I think school board members are safe because that is closest to the people. A 
person is mad because their kid doesn't get to play basketball and that calls the school 
board member. We get plenty, they get a lot of that kind of contact. So there is a lot of 
interaction between citizens and school board members. But that is how it works, the voters 
have approved establishing a building authority, they have a limited amount of funds that 
they can raise for that project as long as they are operating within that, and that's the way it 
works. We have to decide I guess if we want to open it up for changes to that or not. That's 
where the committee discussion starts I guess. 

Senator Grabinger That $4 million dollars in the changes in the law is that state law or is 
that local? 
Senator Judy Lee it is local. Senator Grabinger So we took this up last session. Senator 
Judy Lee Yes there was a big todo because of people who were ticked off and we've got to 
have Davies High School. 

Senator Bekkedahl This whole issue really came to light aggressively when Bismarck 
Park District had a public vote on some improvements which including buildings. One was 
the Aquatic Center at BSC. It was turned down twice in public votes and the park district 
using this provision which was Federal IRS ruling provision, not even state code at the 
time, used this to go and build the aquatic center when the public said no to it twice. That is 
where this thing became really aggressive politically and within the state. So you 
legislatively had to deal with it, I think it's gone through multiple configurations. The last 
session you put the $4 Million dollar threshold in, I personally am very comfortable that how 
it's working now is taking into consideration and allowed the public doubts and provides 
great benefits. I don't have any problem with killing this bill because I think you make it 
worse instead of better. 

Chairman Burckhard I like that idea. 
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Senator Anderson This business didn't obviously work very well in Griggs County 
Courthouse. There was no vote to establish the building authority and my understanding is 
there was no revenue to pay the building authority off unless they intended to lease it to the 
county commission. Maybe that was how they were going to pay it off. It didn't work out 
very well and in that case the voters changed the people, the building authority was always 
there, and the bottom line is they were stuck. Now, I don't know if they had said, okay we'll 
forget about then what would happen to the building authority. I guess I don't understand 
that quite, and that building would've just sat there and would have to rent it to somebody 
else or what, I don't know. 

Senator Dotzenrod Do building authorities have a taxing district boundary that is you can 
have a county building authority like in Griggs County; you can have a West Fargo School 
District building authority so the boundaries may not conform to a city boundary. Maybe 
some people in the city are paying and some like in West Fargo, is paying because the 
school district must include the entirety of the city; but you could have people that don't live 
in West Fargo or outside of the city but they are in the West Fargo School District. Evidently 
they have under certain conditions they can have a mill levy authority the way it appears 
but I don't know if it sounded like in Griggs County they don't. It looks like from this that they 
don't in West Fargo either. They have authority and their not using it. It looks like they do 
have a taxing district; that appears to be a part of the way that they work. 

Senator Judy Lee they have used this as I mentioned the 3 schools and the bigger 
because they did it all. I mean we had an election also so that was very much a part of that. 
But it is established and it is there. The Griggs County thing and I understand they got 
everything figured out but its' been a lot of pain involved. Now that couldn't happen 
because of what was tightened up. The voters have to establish a building authority. Well a 
building authority can build building if it's under $4 Million dollars if they have the resources 
in their funding stream. 

Chairman Burckhard Do we have a motion of a do not pass - no we don't. 
Senator Judy Lee I move a do not pass on HB 1459. 
2nd Senator Bekkedahl 

Committee Discussion 

Senator Dotzenrod This kind of reminds me of a study we had on special assessments 
that is yes you could study it, but most of what is there is a matter of record. I guess I 've 
kind of come to the same conclusion as on the special assessments. There may not be any 
downside to studying it, but on the other hand anybody who doesn't like what's going on in 
building authorities can come and offer up a change. It's federal law so we're kind of stuck 
with but evidently the states can do things as the $4 Million provision that was added so I 
guess I am fine with a do not pass. 

Roll call vote 
6 Yea, 0 No, 0 Absent 
Carrier: Senator Dotzenrod 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1 459 

Page 1 ,  line 2, remove ",  improvements," 

Page 1 ,  l ine 4, remove the comma 

Page 1 ,  l ine 5,  remove "improvements, "  

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 1 , remove ", improvements," 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 2, remove ", improvements," 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 8, overstrike the comma 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 9, overstrike "improvements," 

Page 1 ,  l ine 23, overstrike the comma 

Page 1 ,  l ine 24, overstrike "improvements, "  

Page 2 ,  l ine 1 ,  overstrike " ,  improvements,"  

Page 2, l ine 6, overstrike the first comma and insert immediately thereafter "or" 

Page 2, l ine 6, overstrike the second comma 

Page 2,  l ine 7,  overstrike "repair, improvement, modernization, or renovation" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 5. 0972.0 1 001 
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Good morning, thank you for a llowing me to say a few words in support of HB1459. My name is Troy 

Olson and I a m  testifying as a citizen of Griggs County. 

As you may be aware, the G riggs County commission formed a Building Authority in 2013 solely as a 

means to finance a new courthouse in Cooperstown. There had been three ballot initiatives prior to the 

commission settling on uti lizing a building authority to finance this project, a l l  of which had failed to gain 

50% support from the voters, let a lone the 60% required to issue general obligation bonds. 

Due to considerable resistance from the general public for this project and a general dislike for this 

funding method, the project seemed to get put on the fast track by those involved. As a result, the 

project was poorly planned, underfunded and is to this day not completed. The county has an 

unfinished bui ld ing sitting on Griggs County Property which the building a uthority claims the County is  

monetarily responsible to finish and then lease it for the next twenty years at  which time the county 

would take ownership. 

Even though I feel that the real culprit has been Chapter 57-15-59 of the century code which a llows the 

lease finance option when an elected body is unable to present a project to their constituency that the 

voters consider a good value to the taxpayers, this is a step in the right direction. I would like to see the 

threshold to create a building a uthority be set at 60% vote of the people instead of 50% so that the 

preferred public financing method doesn't migrate in the direction of building authorities because the 

bar is lower than using traditional financing methods. 

As is too often the case, the unintended consequences of al lowing public officials to act in conflict with 

those who a re responsible for fulfi l l ing the fiscal responsibilities of those decisions is not sound 

governance. 
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l4 .  \ House Political Su bdivision Committee 

Legislative Testimony on HB 1459 

City of Fargo 

February 10, 2015 

Cha irm a n  Klem in and mem bers of the House Pol it ical Subd ivision Comm ittee, I am Kent Costin the 

D i rector of F ina nce of the City of Fa rgo. Thank you for a l lowing us to share our  testimony with you 

regarding H B  1459 and the restrictions it p laces on  North Da kota Cities. 

The im pact of this bi l l  i s  to restrict Bui ld ing Authority type debt and i ncrease voter approva l for a l l  

acqu isit ions, improvements and construction of  any  property or  structure i f  general  ob l igation debt i s  

used to fi nance these improvements. Whi le th is  may seem l i ke prudent governing pol icy, us ing a 

Bu i ld ing Authority fina nc ing structure is an  important tool to consider as capital  financing decis ions a re 

made .  

We do not bel ieve that  th is  is the most effective way of contro l l ing mun ic ipa l  financ ing because there 

a re a l ready methods i n  p lace to control the amount of debt issued that l i nk  the com m u nity's ab i l ity to 

pay the debt issued.  Pursuant to the North Da kota Constitution Article 15, mun ic ipa l ities can issue 

general ob l igation debt for up  to 5% of their overa l l  assessed value with a voter approva l process is in 

p lace to increase th is  l im it by 3%. This p rocess esta bl ishes an  upper level of debt that can be issued 

without i m pa i r ing our ab i l ity to make our bond payments. We th ink  that connecting a City's asset base 

to our bonding capacity makes sense and that decisions abo ut various mun ic ipa l  projects can be made 

at the local  leve l .  An e lection req u i rement for each and every capita l endeavor that we purse for the 

benefit of our citizenry is a burden and s im ply s lows down the ca pita l financ ing process. 

Each m u n ic ipa l ity has a d ifferent ab i l ity to fund their ca pital projects depending upon  what budget 

strategies they deploy.  A ba lanced approach between operating and capita l fund ing i s  essential  for the 

long term susta inabi l ity for a ny com mun ity. Fa rgo has used th is  ba lanced approach for many yea rs and  

i t  has  worked effectively. We have tended to  uti l ize paying cash from our  existing resources but  have 

used a Bu i ld ing Authority type debt structure just once in the past 25 years. This was for a City Ha l l  

remodel ing and expa ns ion project that  cost a bout $5 mi l l ion .  This debt was  reti red ear l ier than the  

twenty year term in itia l ly used . 

We testified on  H B  1286 during the last legis lative session and I reviewed our  test imony for that hear ing . 

I ron ica l ly, we identified that the State of North Dakota's Pub l ic F ina nce Authority is reported as a 
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Department that uses a Bu i ld ing Authority financing beca use it has a very restricted ab i l ity to issue 

General Ob l igation debt.  The authority to issue th is  type of debt i s  t ied to the revenue stream used to 

repay the debt .  Th is  b i l l  restricts m u nic ipa l ity's use of Bu i ld ing Authority debt fi nancing whi le  at the 

same t ime preserves the State's ab i l ity to conti nue using th is  type of non-restricted debt. Does th is  

seem l i ke a dua l  sta ndard be ing im posed upon a l l  North Da kota m un ic ipa l ities? Let's take a look at 

projects funded by the State of North Dakota us ing the Bu i ld ing Authority structure. Exhibit A of this 

test imony has been extracted from aud ited fi nanc ia l  statements of the North Dakota Bu i ld ing Authority. 

Six bond issues tota l i ng $86.7 m i l l ion have been sold in the last ten yea rs that funded abo ut th i rty State 

projects. Most of these projects were for bu i ld ing renovations, internal systems, wel lness centers, 

veteran's homes, and other h igher ed ucation renovation projects. I ron ica l ly, debt restrict ions for the 

State of North Dakota's debt issua nces are m uch more restrictive than the amo unt issued i n  the State of 

North Da kota Bu i ld ing Authority. Currently, the Constitution (Article X -Section  13) proh ibits the State 

from issuing debt for more than $ 10 mi l l ion .  This restriction has been circumvented by us ing the State 

Bu i ld ing Authority instead of State backed debt issues. 

These projects a re the very type of projects that HB 1459 bi l l  could restrict for mun icipa l it ies .  I t  is 

o bvious that the State of North Da kota th inks th is  is an  effective way to fund renovatio ns .  We agree 

with th is  logic and  th ink  that reta in ing the right to issue Bu i ld ing Authority debt is serv ing a useful 

purpose when app l ied on  a prudent basis .  A vote on  each and every borrowing transaction wil l  become 

a freq uent and  wasteful p rocess. We bel ieve that the restrict ions cu rrently in N DCC 20-03-06 a re too 

impractica l and  restrictive and that may be contributing to the overa l l  use of Bu i ld ing Authority debt by 

the State of North Da kota and it's pol it ical subd ivisions .  The State of North Dakota's constitut ional  

l im its fo r the issuance of debt seem overly restrictive as wel l  in  l ight of the needs for addit iona l  

i nfrastructure fina ncing and the State's AAA bond rating. It would appear that the State of North Da kota 

m ight be paying higher interest costs by cont inu ing to use Bu i ld ing Authority Debt. Perhaps th is  

something that needs to be studied in  future legislative sess ions? 

We u rge al l  Com m ittee mem bers to vote DO NOT pass on HB 1459. Let's keep a l l  of our  financia l  tools 

in the gove rnmental  tool kit ! Tha n k  you for the opportun ity to be heard. I would be happy to answer 

any q uestio ns that you may have on our test imony . 

2 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(In Thousands) 

Listing of Projects 

Issue 

2005A 

2006A 

2006B 

20 1 0A 

2010B 

20 1 2A 

Size Agency 

37,955 ,000 University System 
University System 
University System 
University System 
University System 
Historical Society 
Department of Corrections 
Department of Corrections 
OMB 

Attorney General 
Parks and Recreation 

1 0,460,000 University System 
University System 
University System 
Department of Corrections 
Department of C01Tections 

1 1 ,930,000 University System 

University System 

2,355,000 Veteran's Home 

4,91 0,000 Veteran's Home 
Job Service 

1 9,055 ,000 

Health Department 

University System 
University System 
University System 

University System 
University System 
University System 
University System 
Health Department 
Department of Corrections 

(continued on next page) 

Project Description 

DSU - Murphy Hall Renovation 
MSU Bottineau - Thatcher Hall Addition and Renovation 
NDSCS - Electrical Distribution 
NDSU - Hazardous Material Handling and Storage Facility 
UND - Energy Conservation Projects 
Heritage Center Collections Expansion 
James River ET Building Improvements 
James River Program and Building Code Improvements 
State Capital Complex Fire Suppression System 

Crime Laboratory Renovation and Addition 
Turtle River State Park Office Building Construction 

MSU - Moore Hall Renovation 
NDSCS - Butte Gym Remodeling 
NDSU - Animal Facility 
YCC Gym Renovation 
YCC Pine Cottage Remodel 

WSC - Health and Wellness Center 
MSU - Old Main Renovation 

New Facility 

New Facility 
Bismarck Service Office 
Laboratory Addition 

DSU - Murphy Hall Phase I Addition 
UND - Abbott Hall Renovation 
BSC - Science and Mathematics Center 
NDSU - Emission Control Renovations on Power Plant 
DSU - Klinefelter Hall Renovations 
Mayville Steamline Replacement Phase II 
VaCSU - Graichen Gym Elevator and Emergency Exits 
Morgue and Storage Annex 
James River Food Service and Laundry Renovations 

1 8  
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H O U S E  POLITICAL S U B D IVIS IONS COM M ITIEE 

H B  1459 

CHA I R MAN KLEM I N  A N D  M EM BERS OF TH E COM M ITIEE 

For the record my n a me is B l a ke Crosby. I am the Executive Di rector of  the N o rth 

Da kota League of Cities rep resenting the 357 cities across the State . We a lso 

i nc lude i n  o u r  m e m bersh ip  the N o rth Da kota Recreation  a nd P a rk Associati o n  

a n d  at t h e  e n d  o f  last yea r w e  h a d  101 m e m be r  P a rk Districts. 

Over the past 2 yea rs the N o rth Da kota Depa rtment of Com merce has worked 

very h a rd on e ncou ragi ng folks, especia l ly you ng fam i l ies, to "F ind the Good Life" 

in N o rth Da kota . There is a recognit ion that a good job is just not e nough a nd 

that is where pa rks a nd recreation faci l ities come i nto p lay. They a re 

i nfrastructu re we know fa m i l ies look for when m a king a decision on  where to l ive . 

B u i l d i ng a uthorities al low the creation of that i nfrastructu re by us ing funds other 

than p roperty taxes. Disa l lowing bui ld ing authorities wou l d  create an i mpact on  

property taxes, something e lse  the State has worked very h a rd o n  control l i ng.  

B u i l d i ng a uthorities work a n d  they work wel l  in the p u bl ic  i nte rest. 

O n  b e h a lf of the N o rth Dakota League of Cities, I reco m mend a Do-Not-Pass o n  

H B  1459.  

THA N K  YOU F O R  YOU R  TI M E  AND CONS I D E RATIO N .  I wi l l  try to a nswer a ny 

q uestions . 
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To House Political Subdivisions Committee 
I n  Opposition to H B  1459 
Friday, February 13,  2 0 1 5  

r n  North Oak ta 

M r. Chai rman and M embers of the Committee, my name is Dana Schaar Jahner, and I 

a m  executive d i rector of the N orth Dakota Recreation & Park Association (N D RPA) . N D RPA 

represents more than 600 m embers across the state, inclu d i ng park board members and 

park d is trict staff, and works to advance parks and recreation for an enhanced qual ity of 

l i fe in N orth Dakota.  I am here o n  behal f of N D RPA i n  opposition to House Bil l  1 4 5 9 .  

N orth Dakota's park d istricts b u i l d  and maintai n  parks and recreation faci l ities 

through a variety o f  fund sources, i ncluding property taxes, state aid d istribution fund 

paym ents, and user fees. I ncreasingly important to meet rising demands for h igh-qual ity 

recreation faci l i ti es are sponsorships, d onations, and grants from i n d ividuals, businesses, 

and co mmun ity organizations, parti cularly given the existing m i l l  levy l i m i tations for park 

d istricts and the need to keep user fees reasonable to ensure p u b l i c  recreation facil ities are 

accessible  and affo rdable.  

With the s tate's strong economy and growing population, l ocal park d istricts need 

access to a variety o f  fu n d i ng mechanisms, i ncluding b u i l d i ng a u thorities or other entities 

that incur ind ebtedness or other obligation. Provid i ng safe, affordable, and accessible 

recrea tion faci l i ties for o u r  citizens and visitors is essential to maintaining N orth Dakota's 

commitment to a h igh qual ity of l i fe. Now is  not the time to tie the h ands of park d istricts 

by l i m i ting op portu nities to use funds other than property taxes to fi nance community 

recreation faci l i ties .  

We u rge a d o  not pass recom mendation on HB 1459.  Thank you . 

1 6 0 5  E A S T  C A P I T O L  AVE P O  B O X  1 0 9 1  B I S M A R C K ,  N O RT H  D A KOTA 5 8 5 0 2  7 0 1 . 3 5 5 . 4 4 5 8  w w w . n d r p a . c o m  
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Testimony of Barb Erbstoesser, Executive Director 

West Fargo Park District, West Fargo, N D  
T o  House Political Subdivisions 

I n  Opposition of H B  1459 
Friday, February 13,  2 0 1 5  

M r. Chairman and M embers of the Committee, my name is Barb Erbstoesser, and I am executive d irector of the 

West Fargo Park District, West Fargo, N D .  I grew up in the rural farming areas of West Fargo, North Dakota. I have been 

employed in a variety of positions with the West Fargo Parks for the past 27 years. The past 1 5  years I have served as 

the d irector. The population of West Fargo just now reaches more than 3 2,000. As you are probably aware, the past 

decade we have been challenged with the largest portion of this significant growth. 

When a B u i lding Authority bond is issued there is no new source of money generated, that is, NO N EW property 

taxes or assessments levied. The reason for voter approval of bond issues is to approve a raise in  taxes. Bui ld ing 

Authorities DO N OT an i ncrease in taxes. The Bui lding Authority process al lows our Park D istrict to use existing 

revenues, but to pledge those revenues over the period of the bond issue. Under the definition of debt in the North 

Dakota Constitution, a political subdivision cannot pledge those existing revenues for over the current budget year 

(except for pure revenue bond).  For example, if under a Park District's current mi l l  levy it can set aside enough funds 

to build a project by pledging 10 years of those revenues, they can do so under a Bui ld ing Authority. Otherwise they 

would have to set aside those excess funds for 10 years to save up the money to build the project. Obviously, that 

means 10 years without the facility and with inflation a higher cost to build the facil ity. 

We have uti l ized Bui lding Authorities extensively at West Fargo Park District over the past 27 years. We have 

purchased park p roperty, constructed the Veterans Memorial Arena which includes 3 major additions and just recently 

the Veterans Memorial Outdoor Swimming Pool. The pay back on these authorities have been through recreation mil ls  

(as appropriate, case by case), cash-in-lieu funds (from land dedication),  user fees, donations/sponsorships and pledges 

from ind ividuals, organizations, businesses etc. Very l imited funding has come from general taxes for re-payment. I f  

this b i l l  passes the delays on projects during an already short construction season would be  even greater. Our low mi l l  

l imitation already holds us to  a low amount on sizeable projects. Repayment of  the funding is al l  a part of project 

planning process so securing the funds has never been an issue and if  i t  is the project does not get off the ground. 

In  2 0 1 5, the West Fargo Park D istrict is planning to build a 45,000 square foot community recreation center 

through the Bui lding Authority process. This facil ity is highly anticipated by our growing Park D istrict. The facil ity wil l  

offer a walking track, programming for the community from early youth to seniors, two basketball courts, a flex gym for 

youth activities, the abi l ity to convert to four  vol leyball courts, meeting rooms and Park District central offices. Our 

staff and elected commissioners have worked very hard with to identify the needs of our growing community. Our 

elected officials are the bridge to the taxpaying public, they l isten to the needs of their constituents and respond 

carefully. 

Public support has been very strong for the projects that have moved forward with the Build ing Authority 

process in the community of West Fargo. I f  this law passes, instead of using a Building Authority, a Park District would have 

no option other than a General Obligation election to raise taxes. The end result is the facility does not get built because it fails 

to pass, or it passes and the residents of the District will have their taxes increased to pay for it. 

The West Fargo Park D istrict encourages a do not pass recommendation on HB 1 459. Thank you. 
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October 201 1 

BUILDING AUTHORITY FINANCING OF 
PU BLIC BU ILDINGS FOR POLITICAL SU BDIVISION USE 

I f  a political s ubdivision has decided t o  bui ld a 
public bui ld ing and the construction cost cannot be 
covered by existing funds, the question becomes 
whether to incur indebtedness through voter approval 
and issuance of bonds of the political subdivision or 
find an alternative means of financing the project. An 
alternative method of financing public bui lding 
construction which has been used in North Dakota is 
establ ishment of a building authority. 

Use of a bui lding authority to construct a public 
bui lding is similar in many respects to financing 
through a bond issue of the political subdivision,  but 
d iffers in  several significant respects . To be viable, 
bonds issued by the building authority must be eligible 
for the federal income tax exemption for bondholders 
to make the bonds attractive to purchasers. To q ual ify 
for the federal income tax exemption status, a bui lding 
authority m ust be establ ished as a nonprofit 
corporation and u nder I nternal Revenue Service 
Rul ing 63-20: 

1 .  The corporation must engage in activities that 
are essentially public in nature; 

2. The corporation must be one that is not 
organ ized for profit; 

3. The corporate income must not inure to any 
private person; 

4. The state or a political subd ivision must have 
a beneficial interest in the corporation while 
the indebtedness remains outstanding and, 
when the indebtedness is retired, the state or 
political subdivision must obtain ful l  legal title 
to the property of the corporation for which the 
indebtedness was incurred; and 

5. The corporation must have been approved by 
the state or a pol itical subdivision, either of 
which must also have approved the specific 
obl igations issued by the corporation. 

A political subdivision lacks the power to form a 
nonprofit corporation building authority (see Attorney 
General Letter Opinion 2008-L-05). Individuals, 
including employees or elected officials of the political 
subdivision, may form a nonprofit corporation bu ilding 
authority. The bui ld ing authority issues tax-exempt 
bonds for construction of a bui lding to be leased to the 
political subdivision. The political subdivision makes 
lease payments from the building fund or other 
sources of the political subd ivision .  If lease rental 
payments are budgeted from available funds of the 
political subd ivision , no indebtedness is incurred in the 
constitutional sense. However, because the revenue 
and appropriations of the political subdivision are an 
annual decision (school boards are l imited to one-year 
leases by North Dakota Centu ry Code Section 
1 5. 1 -09-33(7)) and not an indebtedness backed by 
the property within  the political subdivision, the 
bondholders run the risk of the political subdivision not 
appropriating funds to pay the lease rentals. The 
bondholders have no recourse against the political 
subdivision in the event of default. 

One aspect of bu ilding authority fi nancing of public 
bu ildings that has drawn criticism from some 
taxpayers is that use of a bui lding authority avoids the 
req uirement of voter approval,  while bonding for 
construction of a public bui lding generally requires 
60 percent voter approval u nder Section 2 1 -03-07. I n  
addition, i n  the case of school bui ldings, construction 
of a new school bui lding must be approved by the 
Superintendent of Publ ic I nstruction u nder Section 
1 5. 1 -36-01 , but that does not apply if a school bu i lding 
is to be constructed by a bui lding authority. 

USE OF BUILDING AUTHORITIES 
The committee requested information on the extent 

of use of bui lding authorities. There is no central 
source of information on bui lding authority bonding of 
projects or leasing arrangements. The Secretary of 
State has the following 28 building authorities 
registered as corporations: 

• City of Devils Lake Bui lding Authority. 
• Cass Cou nty B u i lding Authority. 
• Fargo School District Building Authority. 
• Law Enforcement Center B uilding Authority. 
• Minot School District Bu ilding Authority. 
• Rugby B uilding Authority. 
• West Fargo Park District Bui lding Authority. 
• Dickinson Recreation Bui lding Authority. 
• Grand Forks Publ ic School District Bui lding 

Authority. 
• Glenburn Bui ld ing Authority. 
• South Heart Golf Course B uilding Authority. 
• Morton County B uilding Authority. 
• Devils Lake P ublic School District Bui lding 

Authority. 
• Enderlin Bui lding Authority. 
• Hanki nson P ubl ic School District Building 

Authority. 
• Nedrose School District Bui lding Authority. 
• Fort Yates Public School District Bu ilding 

Authority. 
• Berthold School District Bui lding Authority. 
• Napoleon Publ ic School District Bu ilding 

Authority. 
• West Fargo Publ ic School District Building 

Authority. 
• Bismarck Park District Bui lding Authority. 
• South Prairie School District Building Authority. 
• Grand Forks Cou nty Bui lding Authority. 
• Griggs County Central School District Bu ilding 

Authority. 
• City of Fargo Bui lding Authority. 

• Central Cass Public School District Bui lding 
Authority. 

• Kindred Publ ic School District Bui lding 
Authority. 

• Northern Cass Publ ic School District Bui lding 
Authority. 
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1 5. 0972 . 0 1 002 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Klemi n  Title. 

February 1 9, 20 1 5  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1 459 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bi l l  with "for an Act to provide for a 
legislative management study of use of a bui lding authority or other methods to finance 
publ ic bui lding projects as an alternative to political subdivision bonding. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

S ECTION 1 .  LEGIS LATIVE MANAG EMENT STUDY - BUILDING AUTHORITIES 
AND OTH E R  FINANCING M ETHODS. During the 20 1 5-1 6 interim ,  the legislative 
management shal l  consider studying use of a bui lding authority or other methods to 
finance publ ic bui lding projects as an alternative to political subdivision bonding. The 
legislative management shal l report its findings and recommendations, together with 
any legislation necessary to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-fifth 
legislative assembly." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 5 .0972 . 0 1 002 
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--came o ut of Griggs County and the situation was not really one about a building a uthority. 

--Cou nty Commissioners were going to finance a new courthouse one way o r  a nother 

!/. !J. I L/§C/ 
3-2? . 15  

#Z., 

--there is a statutory provision (57.15.59) a l lowing authority to enter into leases for court, corrections, 

a n d  law e nforcement facilities with a 2/3 vote. 

--3 ballot initiatives failed 

--so they latched o n  to building a uthority concept before they were voted out. 

--IRS Revenue Ruling 63-20 a llowing bonds issued by a BA as exempt from federal income tax. 

--State uses a BA. PFA uses it because they have restricted ability to issue GO debt. 

--BA have been an important tool for communities and the State. They control the a mount of debt by 

l inking it to the a bility to pay the debt. Not that commonly used. 

--authority to issue debt tied to revenue stream used to repay the debt. 
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Lee, Judy E. 

From: 
,,----�ent: 

(_ ..Jbject: 

Senator Lee: 

Lerner, Mark <LEMER@west-fargo.k1 2.nd.us> 
Friday, March 27, 201 5 7:47 AM 
Lee, Judy E. 
RE: 1 459 
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A build ing autho rity i s  a sepa rate lega l entity under I RS regulations. I t  has bylaws, Articles of I n corporation, and a Boa rd 
of Directors. 

For m ost school districts, the School Board serves as the Board of Directors. However, multiple entities could actual ly 
come together to create a building a uthority, including multiple municipalities, non-profit orga nizations or even private 
entities. In that case, the Boa rd of Directors cou ld represent multiple entities. 

The bui lding a utho rity has the a bi l ity to sell debt to raise capita l for construction. However, since they don't have the 
a bi l ity to tax to raise fu nds, they use a revenue leases as the basis for financing the debt. 

Here is a n  exa m ple from West Fargo Schools: 

I n  2004, we opened the Cheney M iddle School, wh ich left the former middle school building vacant. The building 
needed some updating and the district was looking for creative ways to use the space. 

We fo und entities that wa nted to rent space from us (the West Fargo Public Libra ry, HeadStart, YMCA dayca re, 
.. A.ppleTree preschool,  etc) . In addition, the school district planned to use some of the space fo r the Community High ( �ool a nd Ea rly Chi ldhood Special  Ed ucatio n. Each of these entities, including the school district, agreed to rent space. 

The school district created the West Fargo Schools Building Authority, which then issued lease agreements to all of the 
tenants and used those leases to p rovide backing for debt that was subsequently issued to renovate and remodel the 
old middle school into the Lodoen Community Center. 

Since the rents were the basis for repaying the debt, there was no public vote, nor was there a sepa rate Debt Service 
levy created. The b ui lding a uthority set aside a portion of the rent for the debt service payments. 

Under the 2013 cha nges to the law with regard to Building Authorities, if we were to do this again today, we wo uld be 
req uired to have a publ ic vote since the cost of the project exceeded $4,000,000. 

I hope that provides some basic information that you can share. If you have specific q uestions, don't hesitate to cal l  me 
at 701-499-1004 (desk) or 701-367-6255 (cel l ) .  

Mark Lerner 
Business Manager 
West Fargo Schools 
207 Main Ave W I West Fargo ND 58078 
P: 701-499-1004 I F: 701-356-2009 

From: lee, J udy E. [mailto:jlee @nd .gov) 
Sent: Friday, March 27, 2015 7:12 AM 
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